Report of the Curator of the
Somerset County Wuseum, from Julp 22, 1925,
to Julp 13 (Annual MWeeting), 1926

As the result of Excavations conducted on behalf of the
Somersetshire Archaological Society additions to the Museum
collections have been obtained from the Meare Lake Village
and from Ham Hill.

The Marquess of Bath has deposited on loan in the Museum
the archaeological remains found in Gough’s Cave at Cheddar.
These specimens were formerly shown in cases in the engine-
house at the entrance of the cave. They include the remains
of the * Cheddar Man °.

The collections of prehistoric antiquities have also hbeen
enriched by a number of stone and bronze implements kindly
presented by Mr. J. K. Pritchard, v.s.A.

One of the most striking additions is the case containing
trumpets, drums, banners, ete., of the West Somerset Yeo-
manry, placed on deposit by the Yeomanry’s trustees.

We have to thank Mr. S. Lloyd Harvey for being instru-
mental in getting a number of horse-brasses and other ° by-
gones * presented to the Museum. This collection and a series
of lamps have been arranged during the year. An interesting
collection of domestic ironwork, including some rush-light
holders, has been given by Mrs. Prideaux in memory of her late
husband, W. de C. Prideaux, ¥.s.A., who was born at Wel-
lington.

The coin collections have received some attention ; and the
series of Anglo-Saxon silver pence, struck locally, given by
Mz. C. Tite, have been labelled.

The Woodhouse Collection, received in 1907, and one of the
few loan collections remaining in the Museum, has been removed



Curator’s Report Ixxxi

by Miss Linda Woodhouse and her nephew, Major O. W.
White. The objects, mostly art, had no local significance.

The Society’s earliest manusecript has been examined by
Mr. K. Sisam at the Bodleian Library, Oxford, and is now in
the Museum, labelled, ¢ fragment of an Anglo-Saxon Book of
Gospels for the Sundays, with short expositions, copied in the
south of England, eirc. 1100 A.D..

In the Library some of the series of books have been re-
arranged ; and Lt.-Col. H. R. Phipps, D.s.0., has done a large
amount of work in the indexing and arrangement of the
Society’s manuscripts.

The Botanical Section held a general meeting at the Castle on
January 16, 1926, and the Entomological Section on March 4th.
The Microscopical Section held a meeting at the Castle on
January 28th and another at Taunton School on March 31st.
The annual meeting of the Ornithological Section took place
on April 8th, and in the afternoon. jointly with the Taunton
and the Bridgwater Field Clubs, the Section held a meeting in
the Exchange Picture House, when Captain C. W. R. Knight,
M.c., described his bird film, ¢ Aristocrats of the Air’. The
Taunton Field Club also held conversaziones at Taunton
Castle and the Municipal Hall on January 14th and March 11th.

The Somersetshire Archmological and Natural History
Society consisted of 1,044 members in July 1926, including
twenty life members and three honorary members.

The Museum and Library were visited by 8,393 persons in
1921, 8,250 in 1922, 8,909 in 1923, 8,302 in 1924, and 7,763
in 1925,

H. St. GEORGE GRAY,

Assist,-Seeretary and Librarian, Som. Arch. & Nat. Hist. Society,
Curator of the Somerset County Museum.



doditions to the PWuseum
From July 22, 1925, to July 13 (Annual Meeting), 1926

I. ARCHAEOLOGY

(1). SToNE IMPLEMENTS

Frixt implements of Neolithic type (four scrapers, two
knives, a fabricator, and a flake struck from a piece of a
polished celt). Found by the donor in the parish of Abbot’s
Leigh.—Given by Mr. A. SELLEY.

Plaster cast of a large stone adze-hammer, perforated and
countersunk from both surfaces; the original was found at
Dunster, circ. 1889.—Presented by Mr. A. V. Cor~isH.

Ten flint implements and flakes, found in ploughed fields at
Stratton-on-the-Fosse, 1925-6.—Given by Mr. ATDAN SAVAGE.

Scraper of chert found in gravel in constructing the new
main-road at Ashill, 1925.—Given by Mr. W. L. RADFORD.

Four flints with secondary chipping picked up by the donor
on the surface, Quantock Hills, 1926.—Given by Mr. A. T.
Wicks.

Chert implement of St. Acheul type, length 5} in.; from
the Broom gravels, River Axe.

Palaeolithic implement, length 43 in.; Savernake, Wilts.

Flint axe, chipped and partly ground, oblong cross-section,
length 6% in.; Neolithic ; Denmark.

Small polished celt of a dark green stone, length 2.1, in. ;
? West Indies.

Greenstone axe, polished, with an oblique cutting-edge ;
somewhat damaged ; length 51 in.; Maori, New Zealand.

Axe of very dark green stone, highly polished ; the crescentic
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weight 150 grm.; socketed spearhead, having two loops, length
120 mm., weight 74 grm., including what appears to be a piece of
the shaft in the socket.

Bowl of brown earthenware, with overhanging rim, height
3% in. ; Romano-British. Found on Ham Hill, and given to
Dr. Walter by the Rev. C. F. Powys, when vicar of Montacute.

Spur of bronze, broken, fourteenth century. Found on
Ham Hill.

From the late Dr. R. H. Warrer’s Collection.

Half a pair of iron shears, polished bone pin, bone hook
perhaps used for making coarse textile, greater part of a large
stone celt, and a hammerstone of flint. All found on Ham
Hill, Stoke-under-Ham.—Presented by Dr. S. L. BriMsLE-
COMBE.

Dise of a light porous stone, probably an incomplete spindle-
whorl, dug up at Downside Abbey, 1926.—Given by the Rev.
Father E. HorNE, F.5.A.

Object of lead bearing some resemblance in outline to a rude
form of quadruped, length 2% in. Found in a field near the
pond at Nordrach, Blagdon, Mendip. Also a few Roman
remains found in the same field.—Given by Mr. A. SELLEY.

Button of brass, diameter 23 mm., which shows ¢ vair ’, the
coat of Beauchamp. Found in cutting the new main-road at
Ashill, 1926.—Given by Mr. W. L. RADFORD.

Sir Thomas Beauchamp, the last lord of Ashill of that name, died in 1430.
His shield may be seen on the cornice of the roof of the nave in the parish

church.

Greater part of an encaustic tile with equestrian figure
design, thirteenth century. Found by the donor on the site
of Dunkeswell Abbey, E. Devon. (This Cistercian Abbey was
founded in 1201).—Given by Mr. P. R. BeENDON.

Small ointment-pot of red ware, glazed, height 1} in., early
eighteenth century. Found in excavating for a petrol tank
in the yard of the County Hotel, Taunton, July, 1925, depth
about 9 feet.—Given by Mr. W. J. StickKNEY.

Two bone awls, lengths 41 in. and 5} in. ; from Estavayer,
Lake of Neuchatel ; bronze pin, probably of a fibula, from the
same place.—Given by Mr. F. W. HemeryY,
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Coins.—About 340 in bag, mostly Roman.

Siliqua (silver) of Julian IT, a.p. 335-363, struck at Constanti-
nople.

Solidus (gold), in mint condition, of Valentinian IT, A.D. 375-392,
struck at Trives.

II. ETHNOGRAPHY

The following specimens presented by Mrs. PRiDEAUX, in
memory of her late husband, W. de C. Prideaux, ¥.5.A. :

Medicine-spoon of pewter, nineteenth century.

Wooden jug with handle, made up of thirteen staves held
together by four bands of copper, height 102 in.

Two rush-holders, one mounted on a wooden stand, the other
on an iron tripod.

Two rush and candle holders, one mounted on a block of
wood, the other on an iron tripod, the legs joined by a ring-
base.

Ember-tongs and tobacco-stopper combined, length 183 in

Clay-pipe burner—a heavy iron rack in which long clay pipes
were fired, length 122 in.

Short bar erooks for use over a wood fire ; from the ¢ Pipers
Inn °, Ashcott, Somerset.

Devonshire ° goose-neck’ or ° pollyandy’, otherwise an
‘idleback ’ or ‘ lazyback ’, used with kettle over hearth fire.

Hanger of iron with a flat sheet-iron ratchet attachment.

Band-lock to which a chain is attached.

Finely-cut late seventeenth-century door-key; bunch of
four sixteenth-century door and cabinet keys ; six other door-
keys.

Two specimens of chain-shot.

The below-mentioned Collection of Horse-Brasses, etc., was
made by Mr. S. LLoyd HarvEY for presentation to the Somerset
County Museum :

Two martingales each with brass buckle and four brasses attached one on
each martingale being a crescent. Ome of the brasses is lettered J. C. Wall ;
he was the carting-agent for the old Bristol and Exeter Railway Compﬁmy

Two brass-studded bridle-reins, complete, and a bridle-rein holder ; leather
head-strap with two swinging brasses, on one of which a horse is engraved ;
two rosettes (red, white and blue) ; a whalebone whip fitted with twenty-two
brass ferrules, a coin of Edward VII (1902) fitted at the end.
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III. CHINA, POTTERY, AND GLASS

The following pieces of glass and pottery found in deep
excavations in Newgate Street, London; all may be of the
eighteenth century : Four glass phials, or medicine bottles,
of round cross-section, heights 4% in. to 5§ in.; small scent
bottle of streaked pale greenish glass, of flattened oval section,
height 21 in. ; two other pieces of glass (damaged) ; colour-pot
on pedestal, of white Delft ware, height 2} in.; greater part
of an egg-cup, perforated, of cream-coloured ware.—Given by
Mr. F. W. HEMBRY.

Two lumps of glass and a stone polisher from the old glass-
works at Glase House Farm, Stanton Wick, parish of Stanton
Drew. (See The Connoisseur, March 1923, p. 128).—Given by
the Rev. Father E. Hor~NE.

Tiny glass bottle, height 1} in., and a fragment of ornamented
stoneware, dug up at ¢ Flamberts ’, Trent, early seventeenth
century.—Given by Mrs. T. HioHENS.

IV. NUMISMATICS

Half-guinea, George III, third issue, dated 1806. Found by
Ernest Liddon, sexton, in digging a grave on the x. side of the
church at North Curry, depth about 6 in., February 3, 1926.—
Presented by the Rev. Preb. D. J. Prixe.

Silver medal, Crimea, 1855 ; diam. 37 mm.; awarded to
Regimental Sergeant-Major Wm. Lyons.—Presented by Mr.
F. Y. Vickery.

Coronation medal of silver, George V and Queen Mary ;
diam. 32 mm.—Presented by Mr. A. G. Wyarr.

Private Ed. Sibley, whose name is inscribed on the edge of the medal,
attended the Coronation as representative of the National Reserve (Somerset),

H. Co.., Chard. Sibley was formerly in the Rifle Brigade, in the Indian Mutiny
and the Relief of Lucknow.

Military badge, consisting of oval garter inscribed ‘ Second
Somersetshire ’ surrounded by a laurel wreath ; inside garter,
“41° in large open figures ; on the top, the sphinx inscribed
‘ Egypt ’.—Given by Mrs. HexsLeiGHr WALTER.

¢ First brass ’ coin or sestertius of Faustina the Elder, wife of
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Antoninus Pius (she died a.n. 141). Found in ploughing at
Westcombe, Batcombe, Som.—Given by Mr. Joux TREEBY.

Two °third brass’ fourth-century Roman coins,—Con-
stantine I (Constantinopolis) and Valentinian I. Found with
a great number of similar coins in Woodland Road, Portishead,
Som., during contract work a few years ago.—Given by Mr. A.
SELLEY.

‘Third brass’ coin of Tetricus junior, A.D. 267 - 273.
Ploughed up in a field at Writhlington, Som.—Given by Mr.
A. W. Tres, Radstock.

Farthing of Charles I.—Given by the Rev. Father E. HorxE.

Threepence of Elizabeth, found at The Mill, Foxcote, Som.,
by the donor.—Given by Mr. G. CoLzs, Foxcote.

Halfpenny, George III, 1807, found by the donor amongst
débris from excavation for foundation of new chimney-stack
at Radstock Collieries Yard.—Given by Mr. Wu. Dav.

Small Eastern coin of gold, diam. 85 mm. (? Persian).—
Given by the Rev. H. D. LEwis.

Farthing, George IV, 1825 ; one-guinea weight, 5 dwt. 8 gr.,
marked also 6 i R—Given by Mr. S. Lroyp HagvEey.

Four brass weights, (a) Current weight sovereign, Royal
Mint, 1843 ; (b) Ditto, half-sovereign; (¢) Current weight
sovereign, Royal Mint, 1891 ; (d) }-Moidore.—Given by Mr.
R. P. WarTs, Radstock.

Guinea-scales in long narrow mahogany case, length 5} in.—
Given by Mrs. E. M. C. GrugN, Crewkerne.

V. MANUSCRIPTS, DRAWINGS, ENGRAVINGS,
PHOTOGRAPHS, PRINTED MATTER, ETC.

Procurations, 1585-86, Deaneries of Taunton, Bridgwater,
Crewkerne, Dunster, etc., sewn up in a parchment wrapper
which proves to be the upper half of a folio from a great
Breviary-—the feasts of St. Edith of Wilton and St. Euphemia,
September 16th ; parts of 4th and 5th Lections at Mattins ;
probably Sarum, possibly Augustinian. Refined work circ.
1400. The MS. as sewn up measured 8% in. by 63 in.—De-
posited on loan by the Rev. Lixpsay Coursey, as Viear of
St. Mary’s Church, Taunton.
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Photograph of encaustic tile (three conjoined legs in shield),
Woodspring Priory, near Weston-super-Mare—Given by Mr.
F. W. HEMBRY.

Photograph of base of cross and stump of shaft, Compton
Dundon, October 31, 1926.—Given by the Rev. Father E.
HorxE.

Thirty-three photographs having reference to lace and lace-
making,—mostly Bedfordshire—Given by Mr. A. A. CARNES.

Facsimile of tiny reproduction of ¢ Weldon’s Ladies’ Journal °,
prepared for the Queen’s dolls’ house.—Given by Mr. C.
WEBBER.

VI. NATURAL HISTORY

Greenland Falcon, Falco rusticolus candicans Gm., adult
female. Picked up, disabled, in a garden at the back of
Malvern Road, Watchet, February 20, 1926.—Presented by
Mr. E. B. BeLnamy (and stuffed at the cost of the Ornitho-
logical Section).

Kingfisher, Alcedo atthis ispida L., and White-breasted
Barn-Owl, Tyto a. alba, Scop., both shot by Mr. H. R. Middleton,
husband of the donor, at Lower Marsh, Kingston, near
Taunton.—Presented by Mrs. E. MippLETON, Radyr. 1

Tossil shell (bivalve) from the Lias of Newtown Hill Quarry,
Carlingcott, Peasedown St. John, Som.—Given through the
instrumentality of Mr. S. Lloyd Harvey.

Qovitions to the Libtaty

From July 22, 1925, to July 13 (Annual Meeting), 1926

DONATIONS

Archeeologia, vol. 1xxiv ; Magni Rotuli Scaccarii Normannice,
2 vols., 1840-44.—Presented by the Society of Antiquaries.

The Canterbury and York Society, pts. Ixxv, Ixxvi.—Given
by the late Rev. Dr. S. J. M. PricE.
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Somerset and Dorset Notes and Queries, nos. 145-149,

The Connoisseur, 1926.

Proceedings, Bristol Naturalists’ Society, 4th ser., vol. vi, pt. 3.

Proceedings, Spelwological Society, University of Bristol, vol. ii,
pt. 3, 1925.

Essex Archmological Society, General Index to Transactions,
vols. vi-xv, n.s., 1896-1920.

The Cathedral Churches of England, by A. Hamilton Thompson,
DEIPTE., 1925,

Two Glastonbury Legends, by J. Armitage Robinson, Dean of
Wells, 1926.

Hull Museuwm Publications, no. 140.

Bath and Wells Diocesan Directory, 1926.

Bath and Wells Diocesan Gazette, 1926,

Frome Directory and Almanack, 1926.

PurcoHAsSED FROM THE WIGLESWORTH FUND

Birds in England, by E. M. Nicholson, 1926.
Problems of Bird-Migration, by A. Landsborough Thompson,
1926.

PurcHASED FROM THE SPECIAL Boor Fuxbp

The Arts in Barly England, vol. ii, Anglo-Saxon Architecture,
by G. Baldwin Brown, nr.n., 1925.

Historic Costume : a Chronicle of Fashion in Western Europe,
1490-1790, by F. M. Kelly and R. Schwabe, 1925.

De Foe’s works, including The Plague and Fire of London, and
The Storm, 1884.



